
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 
Grant House 
Mayor Pro Tempore 

 
James L. Armstrong 

City Administrator 
 

Bendy White 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Stephen P. Wiley 
City Attorney 

Das Williams 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Dale Francisco 
Frank Hotchkiss 
Michael Self 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov
 

AUGUST 17, 2010  
AGENDA 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to gain access to, comment at, or participate in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator's Office at 
564-5305 or inquire at the City Clerk's Office on the day of the meeting.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior to 
the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements in most cases. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for 
any changes to the replay schedule. 

http://www.ci.santa-barbara.ca.us/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


 
 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

 2:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting  
  
 

 
 
 
 

A  
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
TERNOON SESSION 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

ROLL CALL 
 

CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive the reading and approve the minutes of 
the adjourned regular meeting of July 29, 2010. 
  

2. Subject:  Used Oil Payment Program Grant (630.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 

Santa Barbara Authorizing the Waterfront Director to Submit an 
Application to the California Department of Resources Recycling and 
Recovery (CalRecycle) for the Fiscal Year 2010-2011 Used Oil Payment 
Program Grant (OPP Grant), Formerly Known as the Used Oil Block 
Grant - Sixteenth Cycle, in the Amount of $22,000; and 

B. If the grant is funded, accept the OPP Grant - First Cycle, in the amount of 
$22,000 for Fiscal Year 2011. 

8/17/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 



CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 
 
3. Subject:  Contract For Design Of The Sycamore Vista Lane And Canon 

View Road Water Main  (540.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
professional services contract with Penfield & Smith in the amount of $64,800 for 
the design of the Sycamore Vista/Canon View Road Water Main Project, and 
approve expenditures up to $9,720 (15%) for extra services of Penfield & Smith 
that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 
  

4. Subject:  Airline Terminal Public Arts Program Agreements With Artists 
(560.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve and authorize the Airport Director to 
execute, subject to approval as to form by the City Attorney, a public arts 
program agreement with Colleen Kelly and Alfred Ramirez for design, fabrication, 
and installation of decorative elements for the wrought iron railings associated 
with the Airline Terminal Project, in an amount not to exceed $48,954. 
  

5. Subject:  Service Agreement With Thresholds To Recovery To Operate The 
Sobering Center (520.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve and authorize the Chief of Police to 
negotiate and execute a Service Agreement with Thresholds to Recovery, Inc., to 
operate the Sobering Center in Fiscal Year 2010, beginning July 1, 2010, and 
ending June 30, 2011, with annual fees not to exceed $190,788, in a form 
approved by the City Attorney. 
  

NOTICES 

6. The City Clerk has on Thursday, August 12, 2010, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

7. A City Council visit to Neighborhood Improvement Task Force Project sites is 
scheduled for Monday, August 23, 2010, at 1:30 p.m. 

8. Received a letter of resignation from Franklin Center Advisory Committee 
Member Michael Goldberg; the vacancy will be part of the next recruitment for 
City advisory groups. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 

8/17/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 



PUBLIC HEARINGS 

9. Subject:  Appeal Of The Planning Commission Denial Of Modification 
Requests For 401 ½ Old Coast Highway (640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council deny the appeal and uphold the decision of the 
Planning Commission to deny two Modifications to allow the conversion of an 
office/storage building to residential use within a required setback and the 
required building separation between residential units. 
  

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

10. Subject:  2010 Sustainability Achievement Report (630.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive a presentation on the 2010 
Sustainability Achievement Report that highlights the City's achievements in 
environmental programs.  
  

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

11. Subject:  Capital Improvement Projects:  Annual Report For Fiscal Year 
2010  (230.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive the Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) 
Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2010. 
  

COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 

COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 

8/17/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 



CLOSED SESSIONS 

12. Subject:  Conference With Labor Negotiator (440.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code 
Section 54957.6, to consider instructions to City negotiator Kristy Schmidt, 
Employee Relations Manager, regarding negotiations with the Police Officers 
Association, Police Managers Association, the Treatment and Patrol Bargaining 
Units, Firefighters Association, and the Hourly Bargaining Unit, and regarding 
discussions with unrepresented management about salaries and fringe benefits.  
          Scheduling:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
          Report:  None anticipated 
  

13. Subject:  Conference With Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation  (160.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider initiation of 
litigation pursuant to subsection (c) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code 
(one potential case). 
 Scheduling:  Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None anticipated 
       (Continued from August 10, 2010 Special Meeting, Agenda Item No. 2) 
  

ADJOURNMENT 

To Monday, August 23, 2010, at 1:30 p.m. at various locations.  (See Agenda Item 
No. 7) 

 
 

8/17/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 



 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

ADJOURNED REGULAR MEETING 
July 29, 2010 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 9:02 a.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco (9:15 a.m.), Frank Hotchkiss, Grant House 
(9:11 a.m.), Michael Self, Bendy White, Das Williams, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator James L. Armstrong, City Attorney Stephen P. Wiley, 
Deputy City Clerk Susan Tschech. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Speakers:  Robert Burke.  
 
WORK SESSIONS  
 
Subject:  Plan Santa Barbara General Plan Update (650.05)    
 
Recommendation:  That Council hold work sessions on the Plan Santa Barbara General 
Plan Update - Development Plan Ordinance, Growth Management, Density, and Design 
Policy direction. 

 
Documents: 
 - Submitted at Council meeting of July 27, 2010, Agenda Item No. 18. 
 - PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 
 - Written comments made by Connie Hannah on behalf of the League of Women 

Voters of Santa Barbara. 
 

(Cont’d) 

7/29/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 



Subject:  Plan Santa Barbara General Plan Update (Cont’d)    
 
Speakers: 
 - Staff:  Principal Planner John Ledbetter, City Planner Bettie Weiss, Principal 

Transportation Planner Rob Dayton. 
 - Planning Commission:  Chair Bruce Bartlett, Commissioners Sheila Lodge and 

John Jostes. 
 - Members of the Public:  Susan Klein-Rothschild and Anne Patterson, Coalition 

for Community Wellness; Fred Sweeney, Upper East Association; Judy Orias; 
Connie Hannah, League of Women Voters of Santa Barbara; John Campanella; 
Kellam de Forest; Mickey Flacks; Paul Hernadi, Citizens Planning Association; 
Takashi Wada, Santa Barbara County Public Health Department; Debbie Cox 
Bultan, Coastal Housing Coalition; Joe Andrulaitis, Santa Barbara For All; Milt 
Hess; Lee Anne French, Citizens Planning Association. 

 
Discussion: 

Staff described the City's land use pattern, outlined the General Plan's key goals 
for new housing, and posed the key questions of housing quantity, type, and 
location.  Several examples of existing housing projects were also illustrated, 
including details of number of units, density, and amount of parking.  Staff 
answered Councilmembers’ questions.  

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 12:06 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  SUSAN TSCHECH, CMC 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK 
 

7/29/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  630.01 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: August 17, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Facilities Division, Waterfront Department 
 
SUBJECT: Used Oil Payment Program Grant 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:   
 
A.  Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 

Barbara Authorizing the Waterfront Director to Submit an Application to the 
California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) for 
the Fiscal Year 2010-2011 Used Oil Payment Program Grant (OPP Grant), 
Formerly Known As the Used Oil Block Grant – Sixteenth Cycle, in the Amount of 
$22,000; and 

B.  If the grant is funded, accept the OPP Grant – First Cycle, in the amount of 
$22,000 for Fiscal Year 2011. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
CalRecycle provides annual noncompetitive Used Oil Grants to local governments for 
establishing and enhancing community used oil collection programs. These funds must 
be directed toward used motor oil collection and/or related educational programs. Grant 
awards are based on the population size of each jurisdiction. 
 
The City of Santa Barbara (City) was awarded a grant in the amount of $22,000, for 
Fiscal Year 2010. Over the past several fiscal years, the City has designated these 
grant funds for promotional activities to educate the public about proper management of 
used motor oil. From this point forward, however, the Environmental Services Division 
will no longer administer the Grant funds.  Instead, the Waterfront Department will 
assume responsibility for designating and spending the Sixteenth Cycle Used Oil 
Payment Program funding.  Waterfront staff has agreed to this arrangement in large 
part due to the need for these grant monies to support the Waterfront’s Clean Marina 
Program. 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Used Oil Payment Program Grant 
August 17, 2010 
Page 2 

 

In short, funds from this Sixteenth Cycle will be used to: 
 

• Distribute oil-absorbent pads free to the public. This helps keep bilges free of 
surface oil and subsequently helps keep bilge pumps from creating a sheen on 
harbor water; 

 
• Conduct public education and outreach, including brochures, pamphlets, 

signage, stenciling, etc.; 
 

• Set-up and conduct temporary Hazardous Household Waste collection events at 
the Harbor where used oil is accepted; 

 
• Purchase and distribute free used-oil collection materials (funnels, rags, etc.);  

 
• Make facility improvements that help maintain compliance with requirements of 

Waterfront Department's Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan; and 
 

• Help pay for disposal of used oil from a bilge-water pumpout station and used-oil  
disposal stations at Marina 2, Marina 4 and the City Pier. 

 
On May 18, 2010, Council approved a similar resolution for $12,190. CalRecycle 
recently informed staff that additional funds are available and a revised resolution is 
necessary to apply for all the grant funds available for FY 2010 / 2011.   
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
With approval of the grant, the project will be fully grant funded.  The term of the grant 
will begin on July 1, 2010, and end on June 30, 2011. The annual fund allocation for the 
coming fiscal year is $22,000. The appropriations and estimated revenues are included 
in the adopted budget.   
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
The program is designed to prevent discharges of used motor oil into the harbor by 
providing free and easily accessible resources for safe disposal. 
 
PREPARED BY:   Karl Treiberg, Waterfront Facilities Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: John Bridley, Waterfront Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AUTHORIZING THE WATERFRONT 
DIRECTOR TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION TO THE 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF RESOURCES 
RECYCLING AND RECOVERY (CALRECYCLE) FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2010-2011 USED OIL PAYMENT 
PROGRAM GRANT (OPP GRANT), FORMERLY KNOWN 
AS THE USED OIL BLOCK GRANT - SIXTEENTH CYCLE, 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $22,000 

 
 

WHEREAS, Public Resources Code Sections 48690 et seq. authorize the Department 
of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle), formerly known as the California 
Integrated Waste Management Board, to make payments to qualifying jurisdictions for 
implementation of their used oil programs as required by PRC § 48690 et seq;  
 
WHEREAS, in furtherance of this authority CalRecycle is required to establish 
procedures governing the administration of the Used Oil Payment Program; and 
 
WHEREAS, CalRecycle’s procedures for administering the Used Oil Payment Program 
require, among other things, an applicant’s governing body to declare by resolution 
certain authorizations related to the administration of the Used Oil Payment Program. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. The Waterfront Director or his designee is authorized to submit a Used Oil 
Payment Program application to CalRecycle. 
 
SECTION 2. The Waterfront Director or his designee is hereby authorized and 
empowered to execute in the name of the City of Santa Barbara all documents, 
including, but not limited to applications, agreements, and annual reports, including 
expenditure reports and amendments necessary to secure said payments to support 
our Used Oil Collection Program. 
 
SECTION 3.  This authorization is effective for five (5) years from the date of adoption 
of this resolution through June 30, 2015. 
 
 
 

 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  540.06 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  August 17, 2010 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Contract For Design Of The Sycamore Vista Lane And Canon View 

Road Water Main 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a professional services 
contract with Penfield & Smith in the amount of $64,800 for the design of the Sycamore 
Vista/Canon View Road Water Main Project, and approve expenditures up to $9,720 
(15%) for extra services of Penfield & Smith that may result from necessary changes in 
the scope of work. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Sycamore Vista Lane and Canon View Road are private roads located outside the City’s 
limits. The City began serving water via buried 6-inch cast iron water mains  constructed 
in the 1950s by the developer/sub-divider under a “water service” agreement authorized 
by the City Council.  The water mains were compromised in the Sycamore Ranchito 
landslides that occurred during the 2004-2005 rainy season.  Since that time, domestic 
water service has been delivered to the residents via a 2-inch aboveground copper line, 
which is fine for residential service to the impacted homes, but is generally  inadequate 
for fire protection.  
 
PROPOSED WORK 
 
The proposed work includes the design of a 6-inch water main that will provide water for 
fire protection and domestic service to the area.  The water main will extend from 
Sycamore Canyon Road, up Sycamore Vista Lane, across the recently repaired 
landslide, and will terminate at a fire hydrant on Canyon View Road.  Sections of the 
water main will be aligned above or below ground, depending upon the specifications 
the  Penfield & Smith design engineers deem to be appropriate for minimizing the earth 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Design Of The Sycamore Vista Lane And Canon View Road Water Main  
August 17, 2010 
Page 2 

 

 

movement breakage risk, while allowing the water main to be easily monitored and 
maintained by the City.  
 
Penfield & Smith have submitted an acceptable proposal for the stated work in the 
amount of $64,800.  Staff is requesting authorization of $9,720 for extra services, or 
15% of the contract amount, due to the unique challenges inherent to this project. 
Penfield & Smith’s scope of services includes a topographic survey, easement 
descriptions, and engineering plans and specifications for the water main.  Once the 
water main design is completed, City staff will advertise the project for bid and issue a 
contract for construction.  
 
BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
There are sufficient appropriated funds in the Water Fund to cover the cost of these 
services.  
 
 
PREPARED BY: Rebecca Bjork, Water Resources Manager/CT/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  560.04 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: August 17, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Airport Administration, Airport Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Airline Terminal Public Arts Program Agreements With Artists 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council approve and authorize the Airport Director to execute, subject to approval 
as to form by the City Attorney, a public arts program agreement with Colleen Kelly and 
Alfred Ramirez for design, fabrication, and installation of decorative elements for the 
wrought iron railings associated with the Airline Terminal Project, in an amount not-to- 
exceed $48,954. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
The Airport Department, in collaboration with the City Arts Advisory Committee and the 
Visual Arts in Public Places Committee, developed a Public Arts Program for the new 
Airline Terminal. The Program is comprised of three elements: long term loan of existing 
art; commissioned art; and a rotating exhibit of regional art.    
 
Program Funding 
 
The Airline Terminal Project budget includes $100,000 for the Public Arts Program. The 
initial program budget will fund restoration of existing art, and design and installation of 
three commissioned art projects. The Airport was a fortunate recipient of a $40,000 
grant by Santa Barbara Beautiful that will augment the Arts Program funding in the 
Terminal Project budget. The grant funds are designated for the North Rotunda Floor 
Medallion commissioned art project.   
 
The objective for the ongoing funding of the Airline Terminal Public Arts Program is to 
leverage the initial seed money with grants and funding from organizations or 
individuals who may wish to commission artwork for the Terminal and develop a 
fundraising program. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Airline Terminal Public Arts Program Agreements With Artists  
August 17, 2010 
Page 2 

 

 
Commissioned Art Projects 
 
In December 2009, the Program’s commissioned art element was initiated with the 
distribution of a Request For Proposals (RFP) for artists to submit proposals for the 
design and installation of three art projects. The projects are Decorative Wood Beam 
Stenciling, Main Lobby and North Staircase Wrought Iron Railing Decorative Elements, 
and the North Rotunda Floor Medallion. 
 
Request For Proposals 
 
On December 18, 2009, an RFP for three commissioned art projects was distributed 
with proposals due on February 18, 2010. A notice regarding the RFP was sent to the 
Santa Barbara County Arts Commission distribution list and it was posted on the 
Airport’s website. On January 20, 2010, a mandatory pre-proposal meeting was held to 
answer questions regarding the RFP and the selection process. Approximately 25 
interested parties attended. 
 
The basic submittal requirements for the proposals included: 

• Public art installation experience and an understanding of public interaction.   
• Projects consider the use of “green” materials and processes. 
• The team’s general approach and past experience related to the respective 

projects. 
• Resumes and references. 
• Images of recent work. 
 

The RFP identified three opportunities and the estimated budget for each: 
 

• Main Lobby, North Staircase, and Gate 5 Wrought Iron Railing 
Embellishment - $48,954 
Decorative wrought iron elements to be attached to the wrought iron pickets 
supporting the second floor railings surrounding the main lobby. The decorative 
element should represent the region’s flora and/or fauna. The original budget for 
this project was $35,000. After the artist was selected, the terminal project 
architect had to add more railings and a gate to address new Transportation 
Security Administration requirements. Therefore, more decorative elements were 
needed. The budget was increased by $13,954 for a total of $48,954, to 
accommodate the increase in work product. 

 
• Decorative Wood Beam Stenciling - $12,000 

Stenciling of about 14 wood beams on the ceiling of the first floor entry pavilion. 



Council Agenda Report 
Airline Terminal Public Arts Program Agreements With Artists  
August 17, 2010 
Page 3 

 

 
• North Rotunda Floor Medallion - $65,000 

Circular medallion on the floor of the entry rotunda to the airline ticketing lobby.  
The medallion will be about 19 feet in diameter and will include a visual 
representation of the geographic elements of the region or imagery either current 
or historical in nature containing elements such as indigenous plants, wildlife, the 
slough or the ocean.   

 
The Airport received proposals from 13 artist teams. Some teams proposed on more 
than one of the projects.   
 
Artist Selection Process 
 
The proposals were reviewed by a Selection Panel comprised of two members of the 
Visual Arts in Public Places Committee, one member of the City Arts Advisory 
Committee, two members of the Santa Barbara County Arts Commission staff, one 
member of the Santa Barbara County Arts Commission representing the Third 
Supervisoral District, one Airport staff member, and the Terminal Project architect. 
 
The proposals were evaluated based on the artists’ quality, creativity and strength of 
previous work; professional qualifications and experience.  
 
Selection Criteria Included:  
 

• Ability to manage projects of similar scale and complexity. 
• Technical competence in selection of materials, lighting recommendations, 

installation procedures and long-term maintenance. 
• Experience working as a member of a design team with other design 

professionals and engineers. 
• Ability to communicate effectively with architects, contractors, the Terminal 

design team and Airport staff. 
• Reference recommendations. 

 
The Selection Panel narrowed the proposals to five teams who were invited to an 
interview with the Panel. After consideration of the proposals, team qualifications, and 
the interviews, the Panel selected the team of Colleen Kelly and Alfred Ramirez for the 
Wrought Iron Railing Decorative Elements and Lori Ann David and Vidya Gauci for the 
North Rotunda Floor Medallion and the Wood Beam Stenciling projects.   
 
BUDGETARY/FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
Funding for the agreement is included in the Airline Terminal Improvement Project 
budget. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Airline Terminal Public Arts Program Agreements With Artists  
August 17, 2010 
Page 4 

 

ATTACHMENT:    Decorative Element Concept Drawing 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Karen Ramsdell, Airport Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



                                                                                                    ATTACHMENT 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

WROUGHT IRON RAILING 
DECORATIVE ELEMENT 

 
ARTISTS:  COLLEEN KELLY & ALFRED RAMIREZ 

 
Concept approved by City Arts Advisory Committee on July 23, 2010 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  520.04 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: August 17, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Police Department, Patrol Division 
  
SUBJECT: Service Agreement With Thresholds To Recovery To Operate The 

Sobering Center 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council approve and authorize the Chief of Police to negotiate and execute a Service 
Agreement with Thresholds to Recovery, Inc. to operate the Sobering Center in Fiscal 
Year 2010, beginning July 1, 2010, and ending June 30, 2011, with annual fees not-to- 
exceed $190,788, in a form approved by the City Attorney. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
The City has used Thresholds to Recovery, Inc. to operate the Sobering Center at the 
Faulding Hotel since its inception in 1994.  The purpose of the Sobering Center is to 
provide an opportunity for public inebriates to voluntarily get sober in a safe, alcohol-free 
environment, as opposed to being arrested and booked into Santa Barbara County Jail.  In 
addition to introducing the inebriate to an alcohol-free environment, the officer turnaround 
time is considerably less and the officer remains in the City. 
 
From July 1, 2009, to June 30, 2010, Thresholds to Recovery, Inc. processed 702 first-
time offenders and 386 repeat offenders, a total of 1,088 admissions.  Since opening in 
1994, Thresholds to Recovery, Inc. has processed 12,368 first-time individual admissions 
and 19,164 total client admissions, including repeat offenders. 
 
Funds to operate the Sobering Center come from monies previously allocated to pay for 
the public inebriates’ jail booking fees.  Personnel at Thresholds to Recovery are 
experts in the field of drug and alcohol programs, targeting low-income clients.  
Continued success is anticipated based on program evaluations performed annually 
over the past nine years.  They have continued to provide a treatment network for first-
time offenders on a long-term basis.  The Sobering Center is a valuable resource to the 
Police Department and the community.  Thresholds to Recovery, Inc has agreed to 
operate the sobering center for fees of up to $190,788 in Fiscal Year 2011.  This 
amount represents a decrease of 1% in total operating costs when compared to Fiscal 
Year 2010.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Service Agreement With Thresholds To Recovery To Operate The Sobering Center 
August 17, 2010 
Page 2 

 

BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Funding for this contract is included in the Police Department’s Fiscal Year 2011 
budget.  However, this contract will allow the City the option to discontinue funding at 
any point in the year given that the funding is dependent on concessions from all labor 
groups to fully balance the General Fund budget. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Alex Altavilla, Police Lieutenant 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Camerino Sanchez, Chief of Police 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  640.07 
 

 

 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 

 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: August 17, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Appeal Of The Planning Commission Denial Of Modification 

Requests For 401 ½ Old Coast Highway 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council deny the appeal and uphold the decision of the Planning Commission to 
deny two Modifications to allow the conversion of an office/storage building to 
residential use within a required setback and the required building separation between 
residential units.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
On April 21, 2010, the Staff Hearing Officer (SHO) held a public hearing and denied a 
request to permit alterations, additions, and change of use to portions of an existing 
building located within the required ten-foot (10’) interior setback.  That decision was 
appealed by the applicant. On June 10, 2010, the Planning Commission held a public 
hearing and denied the appeal, upholding the decision of the Staff Hearing Officer. This is 
an appeal by the applicant of the Planning Commission action (see appeal letter, 
Attachment 1). 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Project Description 
The 7,117 square foot project site is currently developed with two single-family 
residences and 1,106 square feet of residential area, although the permit record is for 
commercial space (see Attachment 2).  The required modifications would reduce the 
size of the building and legalize the conversion of the existing building to a third 
residential unit. This would result in a duplex and a single-family residence with one 
covered and five uncovered parking spaces on the site. The discretionary applications 
required for this project are Zoning Code Modifications to permit alterations, additions, 
and change of use to an existing building located within the required ten-foot (10’) 
interior setback and for reduction of the required ten-foot (10’) building separation 
between residential units, and approval by the Architectural Board of Review (ABR). 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of The Planning Commission Denial Of Modification Requests For 401 ½ Old 
Coast Highway  
August 17, 2010 
Page 2 

 

 
Permit History 
A single-family residence and carport were originally constructed on the site in 1956. In 
February 1960, a variance was approved by the Planning Commission to allow an 
electronic research laboratory to operate in the C-1 zone (the parcel was subsequently 
rezoned from C-1 to C-P/R-2). A permit was issued in 1960 for a 950-square-foot 
addition to the existing residence, to enclose the carport, and to convert all buildings at 
401 ½ Old Coast Highway to an electronic research laboratory as a commercial use and 
occupancy. By 1979, however, the original residence was converted back to a 
residential use as shown in a Zoning Information Report (ZIR), which indicates there 
was a single-family dwelling with storage room behind that dwelling, and a detached 
carport/storage building on the site. 
In June 1982, two Modifications were approved to convert the detached carport to a 
second residential unit. The Modifications were necessary to allow four uncovered 
parking spaces instead of the required four covered spaces and to permit the new 
residential unit at 470 square feet instead of the required 720 square feet, which was 
the minimum unit size at the time. 
In May 1985, a ZIR indicates two dwelling units on site and an attached 
office/workshop. 
In June 2007, a permit was issued to the current property owner to abate “as-built” 
plumbing work in the bathroom located in the rear storage room.  Plans submitted by 
the owner show two residential units on-site with an attached office/storage area at the 
rear of the larger dwelling. 
Enforcement 
In October 2008, in conjunction with the SBPD’s Operation Gator Roll and as a result of 
an arrest made at this location during Gator Roll, an enforcement case (ENF2008-
01303) was created on this property for the creation of illegal dwelling units out of the 
rear office/storage area, and for the recent roof and window alterations accomplished 
without a building permit. In January 2009, a 30-day warning letter to the owner was 
issued and in March 2009, an Administrative Citation was issued for these violations. 
The owner appealed the Administrative Citation, and an appeal hearing was scheduled 
for May 2009.  Prior to the appeal hearing, the Chief Building Official dismissed the 
Administrative Citation, and referred the enforcement case to the City Attorney’s office. 
In October 2009, the City Attorney’s office and the property owner’s prior legal counsel 
signed a settlement proposal detailing expectations and necessary steps for abatement 
of the building and zoning code violations on the property. The negotiated solution 
allowed the owner to apply for the necessary Modifications and subsequent building 
permits in an effort to legalize many of the “as-built” conditions on the property. If the 
code violations are not addressed through the permitting process, the City Attorney’s 
Office is prepared to re-initiate its code enforcement efforts.  Staff has also suggested 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of The Planning Commission Denial Of Modification Requests For 401 ½ Old 
Coast Highway  
August 17, 2010 
Page 3 

 

abatement of the current code violations by returning the rear portion of the building to 
its legal use as office/storage. 

Between October 2009 and April 2010, City staff worked with the applicant to develop a 
complete application for review by the ABR and SHO. The applicant contends that this 
area has been used as a residential unit for at least 25 years, and that he has been 
renting it to tenants participating in the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program 
since 2003. 

Zoning Ordinance Requirements 
Based on the permit history, the City recognizes only two legal residential units on site, 
with an attached office/storage building in the rear and four uncovered parking spaces. 
In order to legalize a third residential unit, the project must satisfy the Zoning 
Ordinance’s density, open yard, covered parking, setback, and building separation 
requirements.  
The site’s dual zoning of C-P (Restricted Commercial) and R-2 (Two-Family Residence) 
allows for the density and open yard requirements of the R-4 (Multi-Family Residence) 
Zone. The proposed project meets those density and open-yard requirements. 
The proposed project, which involves the conversion of office/storage area to a third 
residential unit, requires two Modification approvals. One is for the interior (rear) 
setback, the other for the lack of the required building separation. All other zoning 
requirements have otherwise been met. 

Setbacks 
The property is zoned C-P/R-2 and is adjacent to residentially-zoned property at the 
rear.  Pursuant to Santa Barbara Municipal Code (SBMC) §28.54.060, the rear setback 
requirement is ten feet or one-half the building height, whichever is greater. However, 
the storage/office area is built right on the northern and eastern property lines and is 
non-conforming to both the ten-foot rear and six-foot interior setbacks. The applicant is 
proposing to demolish 150 square feet of floor area currently within the required six-foot 
interior setback on the eastern property line. The 420-square-foot portion of the building 
within the ten-foot rear setback will be maintained and converted as part of the new 
residential unit. The conversion of that portion of the building within the setback requires 
a Modification approval. 
It is the applicant’s position that the Modification approval will allow for the continued 
use of a residential unit in its long-term location, that the floor area already exists within 
the setback, and that re-use of the floor area for residential purposes is “green,” and 
consistent with the City’s General Plan. The applicant also states that the proposed site 
improvements include landscaping and outdoor amenities, which will enhance the living 
conditions for the two existing residential units, as well. 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of The Planning Commission Denial Of Modification Requests For 401 ½ Old 
Coast Highway  
August 17, 2010 
Page 4 

 

It is staff’s position that the purpose and intent of setback requirements is to provide an 
area of separation between living spaces and property lines for quality of life associated 
with air circulation, light, and outdoor living space immediately adjacent to the unit.  It is 
staff’s practice to review an ”as-built” proposal as though it were new development, and 
as a result, without any presumption which favors non-conformers, and that residential 
design and amenities should be provided as required under the Zoning Ordinance, 
regardless of its prior illegal use as a residential unit however longstanding. 

Building Separation 
The second Modification which the Appellant/Applicant has requested is related to the 
Code required building separation. SBMC §28.21.070 requires a ten-foot separation 
between one-story residential units.  The existing office/storage room is located five feet 
from the detached residential unit. Therefore, a Modification from the building 
separation standard is required in order to convert the office/storage room to a 
residential unit.  
In an effort to reduce the number of Modifications requested for the project, at one point 
the applicant proposed to attach the two buildings, thereby eliminating the separation 
requirement. That proposal received unfavorable comments from the ABR due to the 
difference in roof height and pitch.  The applicant agreed that the roof connection was 
awkward but stated that the construction of a continuous roof structure to create a 
triplex would exceed the costs he wished to invest in the proposed new unit. The 
applicant’s position is that the buildings exist on site in their current locations and that 
the proposed change of use does not change that condition. 
Staff’s position is that the intent of building separation, like setbacks, is to buffer impacts 
associated with residential units’ proximity to one another, and to allow adequate light 
and air between units.  This is a particularly important consideration for residential units. 
Design Review 
The ABR reviewed the project on several occasions.  On March 22, 2010, the ABR 
found the proposal did not result in quality residential design, lacked appropriate amount 
of open space and landscaping, and unanimously denied the project without prejudice 
to the applicant proposing a significant re-design. This decision was not appealed by the 
applicant. Any future exterior changes on this property would require review and 
approval by the ABR. 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of The Planning Commission Denial Of Modification Requests For 401 ½ Old 
Coast Highway  
August 17, 2010 
Page 5 

 

Staff Hearing Officer 
On April 21, 2010, the SHO held a public hearing and denied the project, finding that the 
setback Modification was neither consistent with the purposes and intent of the Zoning 
Ordinance nor necessary to secure an appropriate improvement on the lot (Attachment 
3). The SHO stated that a conforming design should be explored that provides 
separation from property lines, open air space, adequate private outdoor living space, 
proper lighting for the unit, and to meet the ABR’s criteria for new dwelling units. The 
applicant appealed the SHO’s decision to the Planning Commission. 
The Modification request for building separation was added to this application due to a 
project redesign following the SHO decision. 
 
Planning Commission 
On June 10, 2010, the Planning Commission held a public hearing and voted 5 to 0 to 
deny the appeal without prejudice, (Attachments 4 and 5), and upheld the decision of 
the SHO, making the following findings regarding the two requested Modifications:  
 

Rear Setback Modification 
The rear setback Modification is not consistent with the purposes and intent of 
the Zoning Ordinance.  The proposed location of the third residential unit does 
not provide separation between the residential unit and the property lines. This 
prevents the necessary separation between the proposed use and the uses on 
adjacent parcel.  Furthermore, the rear setback Modification is not necessary to 
secure an appropriate improvement on the lot.  A conforming design that 
provides separation from property lines and residential units, open air space, 
landscaping, adequate private outdoor living space, and proper lighting for 
residential living areas that would meet the ABR’s criteria for new dwelling units, 
should be proposed. 
 
Building Separation Modification 
The building separation Modification is not consistent with the purposes and 
intent of the Zoning Ordinance.  The proposed location of the third residential 
unit does not provide the required separation between the proposed residential 
units on the site.  The proposed building separation Modification is not 
necessary to secure an appropriate improvement on the lot.  A conforming 
design that provides the required separation between the proposed dwelling 
units should be proposed. 

Although the Commission felt the site had potential for development, it was determined 
that this was not the appropriate project for modifications, nor did it offer adequate 
community benefit.   



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of The Planning Commission Denial Of Modification Requests For 401 ½ Old 
Coast Highway  
August 17, 2010 
Page 6 

 

APPEAL ISSUES: 

The applicant and his architect provide several justifications to approve the requested 
Modifications to allow the “as-built” residential unit (see Attachment 3).  For the most 
part, staff agrees that it could be appropriate to have a third residential unit on this 
property, and that re-using an existing building may be desirable. However, staff does 
not support the proposed configuration of the residential unit directly on the property line 
and within five feet of a neighboring residential unit. Staff believes that a smaller 
residential unit could be constructed, re-using most of the existing building. 
The applicant has stated that he is not interested in a smaller unit and contends that 
larger units are in demand for Section 8 Choice Voucher Program. The Section 8 
program, administered by the Housing Authority of the City of Santa Barbara, allows a 
tenant to pay 30% of their income for rent and utilities and federal funds are paid to the 
landlord to make up the difference between the tenant’s share and the “Fair Market 
Rent” as determined by HUD. According to the Housing Authority, studios and one-
bedroom units are in the highest demand by Section 8 participants.  
Although staff appreciates the property owner’s intention of renting to participants of the 
Section 8 Program, participation in that program is voluntary and does not mandate that 
the City grant relief from development standards.  
The applicant also requests that the City recognize that the “as-built” unit has provided 
an affordable housing opportunity for the community and that a denial of the project 
could result in returning the unit to commercial use, which would not be compatible with 
the residential units on site.  The applicant also asserts that project approval will result 
in an upgrade to the entire site which would be a benefit to all units and the 
neighborhood. It is staff’s position that the same upgrades could occur with approval of 
a smaller third unit on the site. 

CONCLUSION: 

Staff understands that the subject site’s zoning could allow three units and generally 
supports opportunities to provide rental housing for the community. However, staff, the 
ABR, and Planning Commission expect a certain level of quality for new housing 
development that the proposed project does not provide. Staff does not support the 
proposed configuration of the residential unit directly on the property line and within five 
feet of a neighboring residential unit.  Staff has met with the applicant on numerous 
occasions and suggested that a smaller unit be constructed to provide an adequate 
setback from the property line and create an area that could be used as outdoor living 
space for the occupants.   
 
Note: The project plans dated 02/12/10 and additional information submitted by the 
applicant are available for public review in the City Clerk’s Office. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of The Planning Commission Denial Of Modification Requests For 401 ½ Old 
Coast Highway  
August 17, 2010 
Page 7 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Appeal Letter dated June 12, 2010 

2. Site Plan 
3. Planning Commission Staff Report w/attachments – June 3,         
2010 
4. Planning Commission Minutes – June 10, 2010 
5. Planning Commission Resolution No. 005-10 

  
  
PREPARED BY: Roxanne Milazzo, Associate Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Assistant City Administrator/ 

Community Development  
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 













































































Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  630.02 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  August 17, 2010 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT:  2010 Sustainability Achievement Report 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council receive a presentation on the 2010 Sustainability Achievement Report that 
highlights the City's accomplishments in environmental programs.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In January 2006, staff presented the first sustainability achievement report to the City 
Council.  The 2010 report marks the fourth year describing the City’s accomplishments 
related to environmental programs, projects, and policies from all departments.  The report 
is divided into three focus areas, including Waste Prevention, Energy Management, and 
Water Quality, Conservation, and Habitat Restoration.   
 
Over the past year, environmental program staff and committees have developed plans 
and implemented projects to achieve the City’s environmental goals.  The Sustainability 
Council Committee has met monthly to provide policy direction and receive updates on the 
City’s sustainability efforts.  
 
Sustainability Impact 
The Sustainability Achievement Report recognizes accomplishments and provides tips for 
the public, consistent with the City’s environmental protection goals.  The report plays an 
important role in demonstrating the City’s leadership and direction in conserving and 
generating energy, preventing waste, and protecting our natural resources.  
 
Copies of the 2010 Sustainability Achievement Report are available in the City Clerk’s 
Office at City Hall (735 Anacapa Street) and on the City’s web site at 
www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.   
 
PREPARED BY: Nina Johnson, Assistant to the City Administrator 
  
SUBMITTED BY: Jim Armstrong, City Administrator 
  
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  230.01 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: August 17, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Capital Improvement Projects:  Annual Report For Fiscal Year 2010 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council receive the Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Annual Report for Fiscal 
Year 2010. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
A presentation is being made to Council summarizing the CIP progress for the past fiscal 
year that includes $30 million in completed construction projects.  The value of projects 
with construction in progress totals $55,255,857 and the design phase totals 
$141,183,971. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
CONSTRUCTION HIGHLIGHTS: 
 
There were 13 projects completed in Fiscal Year 2010, with total project costs 
exceeding $30 million (Attachment 1).  Highlights include the following: 
 

• Airport Projects - Completion of the Airport Temporary Facilities and Site 
Preparation Project allowed for the start of construction of the Terminal Building.  
The Airport Water System Upgrade and the Consolidated Rental Car Facility 
Projects were also completed during the first quarter of Fiscal Year 2010. 

 
• New Infrastructure and Maintenance - Several projects were completed in Fiscal 

Year 2010 to maintain the City’s infrastructure.  These projects included routine 
pavement maintenance, slurry seal work, sewer main improvements, sidewalk 
infill, and the Mission Street Bike Lane. 

 
• Upgrades to Fire Station #1 - The Fire Station #1 Project met its primary goal of 

bringing the building into compliance with current building codes.  This included 



Council Agenda Report 
Capital Improvement Projects: Annual Report For Fiscal Year 2010 
August 17, 2010 
Page 2 of 5 
 

 

seismic, accessibility, fire and life safety, energy efficiency and functionality; all 
completed while the Fire Station remained fully operational. 

 
One project was completed in the fourth quarter of Fiscal Year 2010 (see Attachment 2). 
 
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS: 
 
There was a significant amount of construction in progress at the end of Fiscal Year 
2010 (see Attachment 3).  The following are some highlights of construction projects in 
progress: 
 
Downtown Parking: 

• Parking Lots 4 & 5 Circulation and Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 
Improvements ($192,645) - Parking Lots 4 and 5 were completed in the first 
quarter of Fiscal Year 2011, and pedestrians are currently enjoying improved 
ADA parking and access in both lots.  The new driveway entrance into Parking 
Lot 4 will help protect the new kiosk, gate arms, and revenue control equipment 
from larger vehicles. 

 
Public Works Streets: 

• American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) Pavement Preparation and 
Overlay Project ($1,045,276) - The ARRA Road Overlay Project is aimed at 
preserving the surface of city roads by correcting any subsurface failures prior to 
the final pavement sealing.  The pavement overlay will reconstruct over 300,000 
square feet, or approximately five lane miles, of severely distressed roadway 
surface.  This project is scheduled to be completed in the first and second 
quarters of Fiscal Year 2011. 

 
• Zone 4 Pavement Preparation and Slurry Seal ($2,600,000) - During the summer 

of 2010, the Public Works Department began the Annual Street Pavement 
Maintenance Project for Fiscal Year 2011 in the Mesa and Harbor areas of the 
city.  The city is divided into seven pavement maintenance zones, and pavement 
maintenance is scheduled in each maintenance zone on a five to eight year 
cycle.  The streets will be coated with an asphalt slurry seal, and severely 
damaged pavement will be spot repaired. 

 
• Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Alisos Street Access Ramps 

($145,015) - The project consists of installing sidewalk access ramps at six 
intersections on Alisos Street.  This will enhance accessibility along this route of 
travel in conformance with the ADA.  This project is scheduled to be completed 
by mid-August. 

 
• CDBG Eastside Access Ramps ($88,676) - The project installed sidewalk access 

ramps at seven intersections in the Eastside neighborhood.  The Eastside 
Sidewalk and Access Ramp Project is now in the landscape establishment 



Council Agenda Report 
Capital Improvement Projects: Annual Report For Fiscal Year 2010 
August 17, 2010 
Page 3 of 5 
 

 

phase.  The Notice of Completion will be filed during the first quarter of Fiscal 
Year 2011. 

 
• Haley at De La Vina Bridge ($4,721,406) - During the fourth quarter of Fiscal 

Year 2010, construction on the bridge continued with installing the shoring and 
the creek diversion systems.  Construction in the creek began in May, and the 
old bridge was removed shortly after.  The contractor has been excavating in 
preparation for construction of the new, wider bridge.  This project is scheduled 
to be completed in the fourth quarter of Fiscal Year 2011. 

 
Redevelopment Agency: 

• Brinkerhoff Avenue Lighting Project ($40,999) - A construction contract was 
awarded on June 29, 2010.  A public meeting to update area residents was held 
in May in conjunction with the Haley Bridge public outreach meeting.  This project 
is scheduled to be completed in the first quarter of Fiscal Year 2011. 

 
• West Downtown Pedestrian Improvements ($2,391,127) - The West Ortega and 

West Anapamu corridors from Chapala Street to the Highway 101 pedestrian 
bridge are well illuminated at night and provide significant improvements over the 
previous neighborhood lighting.  The Notice of Completion will be filed during the 
first quarter of Fiscal Year 2011. 

 
Waterfront: 

• Marina One Replacement Phase One ($1,791,538) - The project kicked off in 
September 2009, and construction on site started in February 2010.  Landside 
electrical upgrades were completed in March 2010.  The contractor continues to 
transfer temporary utilities and make final connections to the new dock.  All work 
was accomplished with the Marina still in service, and with minimal 
inconvenience to the boating public.  This project is scheduled to be completed in 
the first quarter of Fiscal Year 2011. 

 
DESIGN HIGHLIGHTS: 
 
There are currently 45 projects under design, with an estimated total project cost of 
$141,183,971 (see Attachment 3). 
 
Work is scheduled to be funded over several years, as generally shown in the City’s 
Six-Year Capital Improvement Program Report.  The projects rely on guaranteed or 
anticipated funding and grants. 
 
The following are design project highlights: 
 
Airport: 

• Airfield Safety/Mitigation Tidal Circulation ($4,149,385) - The project was 
submitted to the California Coastal Commission for a Coastal Development 
Permit (CDP), and the final plans and specifications were completed on July 12, 



Council Agenda Report 
Capital Improvement Projects: Annual Report For Fiscal Year 2010 
August 17, 2010 
Page 4 of 5 
 

 

2010.  This is the final wetland mitigation component of the Airfield Safety 
Projects. 

 
Redevelopment Agency: 

• Parking Structures 9 & 10 ($2,200,000) - The project consists of structural 
seismic performance enhancements, long-term maintenance repairs to the 
concrete beams, floors, columns and girders, and minor ADA accessibility 
improvements based on the Citywide Accessibility Study. 

 
Public Works Streets: 

• Jake Boysel Bike Path ($992,000) - The construction is scheduled to begin in fall 
2010.  This project will provide an essential off-street pathway for bicyclists and 
pedestrians, particularly children traveling to and from nearby schools.  The 
project also includes the installation of a memorial bench and boulder dedicated 
to Jake Boysel, for whom the project is posthumously named. 

 
• Ortega Street Bridge ($6,790,400) - The Right of Way acquisition phase is now 

complete.  This allows for construction to be scheduled for spring 2011, and work 
should last approximately one year. 

 
• Cabrillo Bridge over Mission Creek ($19,707,000) - This bridge project is still in 

the Right of Way acquisition phase.  Recent negotiations with the adjacent 
property owners have gone in a new direction that is anticipated to provide extra 
room for the bridge and creek improvements. 

 
• Mason Street Bridge Replacement ($10,877,000) - This bridge project is in 

coordination with the Lower Mission Creek Flood Control Project and aims to 
alleviate flood events that come to the south coast of Santa Barbara County on a 
regular basis.  Construction of the Mason Street Bridge is scheduled for late 
spring 2012. 

 
• Chapala/Yanonali Bridge Seismic Retrofit ($4,162,640) - This project is located at 

the intersection of Chapala and Yanonali Streets and is currently in the 
preliminary design phase.  Construction is scheduled for spring 2012. 

 
• Cota Street Bridge Replacement ($4,435,000) - The Cota Street Bridge Project is 

located on Cota Street northerly of Bath Street and is currently in the preliminary 
design phase.  Construction of the Cota Street Bridge is scheduled for late spring 
in 2012.  The Ortega Street Bridge should be completed prior to the start of 
construction for this project. 

 
Public Works Wastewater: 

• Headworks Screening Rehabilitation ($5,737,687) - The project involves 
replacing the Auger Monster rag removal screens and a bypass of the 
Headworks area during construction in 2011.  The project is being considered for 
State Revolving Fund loans. 



Council Agenda Report 
Capital Improvement Projects: Annual Report For Fiscal Year 2010 
August 17, 2010 
Page 5 of 5 
 

 

 
Public Works Water: 

• Cater Ozone ($19,500,000) - The project is scheduled to go out to bid in 
August/September 2010, with construction beginning in January/February 2011.  
Work is anticipated to last approximately 24 months.  The project includes 
constructing three new buildings: the ozone contactor building, the dewatering 
building, and the addition to the chemical annex building.  The project is being 
considered for State Revolving Fund loans. 

 
• Ortega Groundwater Treatment Plant Rehabilitation ($10,000,000) - The design 

work includes rehabilitating the Ortega Groundwater Treatment Plant and the 
four wells piped to the plant: City Hall, Corporation Yard, Ortega, and Vera Cruz.  
Construction is scheduled to begin in January/February 2011, and is anticipated 
to last approximately 18 months.  The project is being considered for State 
Revolving Fund loans. 

 
Waterfront: 

• Marina One Phase Two ($1,167,500) - This project will replace five finger docks, 
L - P, over a period of three years.  Construction is scheduled to begin in January 
2011. 

 
SUMMARY: 
 
In Fiscal Year 2010, approximately $30 million of construction projects were completed.  
Fiscal Year 2011 is scheduled to have 26 projects valued at approximately $45 million 
in completed construction work. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 1. Completed Capital Projects Fiscal Year 2010 
 2. Completed Capital Projects Fourth Quarter Fiscal Year 2010 

3. Capital Projects with Design and Construction in Progress 
 

PREPARED BY: Pat Kelly, Assistant Public Works Director/City Engineer/TB 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator’s Office 



Attachment 1 
 

 
COMPLETED CAPITAL PROJECTS FISCAL YEAR 2010 

 
 

First Quarter Fiscal Year 2010 Total Project Costs 
Zone 3 Pavement Preparation $465,548 
Total  $465,548 

 
 

Second Quarter Fiscal Year 2010 Total Project Costs 
West Downtown Water & Wastewater 
Infrastructure 

$368,118 

Fire Station #1 $7,097,512 
San Roque Well, Phase 2 $712,052 
Total  $8,177,682 

 
 

Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2010 Total Project Costs 
Airport Temporary Facilities & Site Preparation $5,146,906 
Alamar Bridge Repair $129,018 
Airport Water System Upgrade $405,276 
Mission Street @ Route 101 Bike Lane $3,030,392 
Carrillo Sidewalk Infill $540,911 
Airport Consolidated Rental Car Project $8,352,655 
Zone 3 Slurry Seal $2,750,541 
Sewer Main Improvements $958,069 
Total  $21,313,768 

 
 

Fourth Quarter Fiscal Year 2010 Total Project Costs 
Sidewalk Infill - Marilla Avenue $200,847 
Total  $200,847 

 
 
Grand Total for Fiscal Year 2010 - $30,157,845 

 



Attachment 2 

 
COMPLETED CAPITAL PROJECTS, FOURTH QUARTER FISCAL YEAR 2010 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Project Name Sidewalk Infill 
Marilla Avenue 

Design Costs $44,890

Construction Contract $105,045

Construction Change 
Order Costs $17,296

Construction 
Management Costs $33,616

Total Project Costs $200,847



Attachment 3 
 

CAPITAL PROJECTS WITH DESIGN AND 
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 

 

 

 

DESIGN IN PROGRESS 
PROJECT CATEGORY 

No. of 
Projects Total Value of Projects

Airport 3 $5,349,385 
Creeks 2 $8,800,500 

Parks and Recreation 1 $219,851 

Library 1 $10,000 

Public Works: Streets/Bridges 6 $46,007,040 
Public Works:Streets/Transportation 6 $5,717,500 
Public Works: Utility Undergrounding 2 $6,034,900 
Public Works: Water/Wastewater 14 $44,149,095 
Redevelopment Agency 8 $23,000,000 
Solid Waste 1 $728,200 
Waterfront 1 $1,167,500 

TOTAL 45 $141,183,971 

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 
PROJECT CATEGORY 

No. of 
Projects 

Construction 
Contract Costs 

Airport 2 $34,858,000 

Creeks 1 $1,322,323 

Parking 1 $192,645 

Parks and Recreation 1 $170,241 

Public Works: Streets/Transportation 7 $9,168,071 

Public Works: Water/Wastewater 1 $87,290 
Redevelopment Agency 4 $7,665,749 
Waterfront 1 $1,791,538 

TOTAL 18 $55,255,857 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  440.05 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: August 17, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Conference With Labor Negotiator 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code Section 54957.6, to consider 
instructions to City negotiator Kristy Schmidt, Employee Relations Manager, regarding 
negotiations with the Police Officers Association, Police Managers Association, the 
Treatment and Patrol Bargaining Units, Firefighters Association, and the Hourly 
Bargaining Unit, and regarding discussions with unrepresented management about 
salaries and fringe benefits.  
  
 
SCHEDULING:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
 
REPORT:  None anticipated 
 
PREPARED BY: Kristy Schmidt, Employee Relations Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Marcelo Lopez, Assistant City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  160.03 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: August 10, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Attorney’s Office 
 
SUBJECT:  Conference With Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council hold a closed session to consider initiation of litigation pursuant to subsection 
(c) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code (one potential case). 
 
 
SCHEDULING:  Duration:  15 minutes - Anytime 
 
REPORT:  None anticipated 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Stephen P. Wiley, City Attorney 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 


	1.DOC
	2.DOC
	3.DOC
	4.DOC
	5.DOC
	6.DOC
	7.DOC
	8.DOC
	9.DOC
	10.PDF
	11.PDF
	12.PDF
	13.PDF
	14.PDF
	15.DOC
	16.DOC
	17.DOC
	18.DOC
	19.DOC
	20.DOC
	21.DOC
	CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
	Mayor
	Dale Francisco
	Michael Self
	AUGUST 17, 2010 
	AGENDA


	ORDER OF BUSINESS



